
 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Communities and Local 
Services Scrutiny 

Committee Agenda 
 
 1.30 pm Friday, 25 June 

2021 
Council Chamber, Town 

Hall, Darlington.  DL1 5QT 

 
 
 

  
 

 

Members and Members of the Public are welcome to 
attend this Meeting. 

 

 
1.   Introductions/Attendance at Meeting  

 
2.   Declarations of Interest  

 
3.   Partnership Working in Darlington –  

Call-in Notice, Cabinet Report and Minute extract 
 (Pages 3 - 14) 
 
 
 

     
 

Luke Swinhoe 
Assistant Director Law and Governance 

 
Thursday, 17 June 2021 
 
Town Hall  
Darlington. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
Membership 
Councillors Allen, Bartch, Cossins, Mrs Culley, Donoghue, Haszeldine, B Jones, 
McCollom, Tait, Wallis and Willis 
 

If you need this information in a different language or format or you have any other 
queries on this agenda please contact Hannah Fay, Democratic Officer, Resources 
Group, during normal office hours 8.30 a.m. to 4.45 p.m. Mondays to Thursdays and 
8.30 a.m. to 4.15 p.m. Fridays email: hannah.fay@darlington.gov.uk or telephone  
01325 405801 



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

25 JUNE 2021  

 

 
PARTNERSHIP WORKING IN DARLINGTON  

 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. We have requested a call-in of the decision of Cabinet, in relation to Partnership 

Working in Darlington (Minute C8/Jun21).  The reasons we have requested the 
call-in is to determine details omitted from the Cabinet report :- 
 

 To explore whether and how partnership working will function with sectors 
other than the public sector;  

 To explore whether and how partnership working will function cross 
sector;  

 To understand what analysis has been completed on SCS outcomes and 
where DBC outcomes do not overlap; and  

 To explore how gaps will be taken forward within DBC policy. 
 

2. We would like to discuss these issues with the relevant Cabinet Member, 
relevant Director and Head of Service. 
 

 
Councillors Wallis, McCollom and Haszeldine 

 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



QUAD OF AIMS  
(TO BE COMPLETED WHEN MAKING CALL-IN) 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Title :  Partnership working in Darlington 
 

Cabinet Minute (if appropriate) :  C8 (1st June 2021) 
 
 

REASON FOR ITEM/CALL-IN RESOURCE 

 
To determine details omitted from the Cabinet report 
1. To explore whether and how partnership working will function with sectors 

other than the public sector 
2. To explore whether and how partnership working will function cross sector  
3. To understand what analysis has been completed on SCS outcomes and 

where DBC outcomes do not overlap 
4. To explore how gaps will be taken forward within DBC policy 

 
1. Relevant Portfolio holder 

 
2. Relevant AD / Head of Service 
 
3. Democratic Services Officer 

 

PROCESS ANTICIPATED OUTCOME 

 

1.  To discuss with portfolio holder & AD / Head of service 
 

 

 

1. To determine details omitted from the Cabinet report 

2. To form a view whether future Partnership working will be in the best interests 
of the Borough. 

 
 

 
COUNCILLOR  ………Nick Wallis…………………………………………. 
 
COUNCILLOR ………Libby McCollom……………………………………………………….. 
 
COUNCILLOR ………Ian Haszeldine……………………………………………………….. 
 
Signed – Assistant Director of Law and Governance …………………………………………………………………….. 
 
 
Dated ……………………………………………. 
 

P
age 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

CABINET  
1 JUNE 2021  

 
PARTNERSHIP WORKING IN DARLINGTON 

 

 
Responsible Cabinet Member -  

Councillor Heather Scott, Leader of the Council 
 

Responsible Director - 
Ian Williams, Chief Executive  

 

 
SUMMARY REPORT 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To update Cabinet on a new partnership approach to delivering success for 

Darlington agreed with partners and to recommend amending the Council’s 
constitution with regard to its lead strategic documents. 
 

Summary 
 
2. This report updates Cabinet on changes made to partnership working in Darlington 

where it has been agreed by partners that the Partnership Board cease and it is 
replaced by a Public Sector Executive Group.  Also, the report recommends as a 
result of the change in circumstances that the Sustainable Community Strategy 
(SCS) cease to be used as a strategic lead for the Borough and that the lead is 
provided to partners by the Council plan. 
 

3. The new approach requires amendments to the constitution with regard to the 
removal of the SCS from it. 
 

Recommendation 
 
4. Cabinet are recommended to :- 

 
(a) Note and agree the new approach to partnership working in Darlington. 

 
(b) Recognise the great contribution to Darlington made by current and past 

Members of the Darlington Partnership. 
 

(c) Approve the change of emphasis with the Council Plan standing as the 
Council’s lead strategy and agree that the Council ceases to have a separate 
Sustainable Community strategy. 
 

(d) Subject to approval by Council, that authority be delegated to the Assistant 
Director, Law and Governance to make consequential amendments to the 
constitution.  
 

(e) That a report with these Cabinet recommendations be taken to Council for 
consideration and approval.  

Page 7



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Reasons 
 
5. The recommendations are supported by the following reasons: 

 
(a) to refresh partnering in Darlington continues to thrive and acknowledge the 

general work done. 
 

(b) for the matter to be considered by Council in accordance with the procedure for 
making changes to documents that are part of the policy framework. 
 

(c) to enable appropriate amendments to the constitution to be made. 
  

Ian Williams 
Chief Executive 

 
 
Background Papers 
 
No background papers were used in the preparation of this report 
 
Paul Wildsmith : Extension 5828 

 

S17 Crime and Disorder No direct impact 

Health and Well Being No direct impact 

Carbon Impact and Climate 
Change  

No direct impact 

Diversity No direct impact 

Wards Affected No direct impact 

Groups Affected No direct impact 

Budget and Policy Framework  No direct impact 

Key Decision No direct impact 

Urgent Decision No direct impact 

One Darlington: Perfectly 
Placed 

This report recommends a replacement for the 
SCS. 

Efficiency No direct impact 

Impact on Looked After 
Children and Care Leavers 

No direct impact 

 
  

Page 8



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MAIN REPORT 
 

Information and Analysis 
 
6. The Darlington Partnership (DP) has for many years been seen as the overarching 

partnership across the Borough; it has its origins in economic growth and was 
established to bring together Public and Private sectors to grow the economy.  
When government legislation required local authorities to establish a Local 
Strategic Partnership (LSP) as part of the overall governance of the Borough, the 
DP became the LSP. 
 

7. The DP embraced numerous statutory roles such as holding to account the 
Community Safety Partnership and Children’s and Young Peoples Trust Board. 
The DP had five themed groups as follows :- 
 
(a) Prosperous Darlington 
(b) Aspiring Darlington 
(c) Healthy Darlington 
(d) Greener Darlington 
(e) Safer Darlington 

 
8. The Partnership was well funded and supported mainly by the public sector, but 

private sector involvement particularly in economic growth was very visible. 
 

9. The key role of an LSP was to agree and deliver a Sustainable Community 
Strategy (SCS).  This sets out overall framework/policy direction within which the 
public sector partners would work to achieve better outcomes for the Borough and 
Private Sector partners where appropriate would work to support the aims of SCS. 
 

10. The SCS was produced by the DP and adopted by the Council.  The SCS was 
titled One Darlington Perfectly Placed (ODPP) with two key strands :- 
 
(a) One Darlington – acknowledged the significant gaps in the opportunities in 

Darlington and it strived to work to narrow those groups. 
 

(b) Perfectly Placed – acknowledged that Darlington had many strengths due to its 
location and strived to maximise the economic benefits of this in its plans.   
 

11. The SCS was last refreshed in 2014 but has not been reviewed since.  Although it 
is fair to say the overall aims of the two priorities remain very much engrained 
within the Council it not be the case in other public sector organisations as time has 
moved on. 
 

12. Following changes in direction from a new government in 2010, the statutory 
requirement to have an LSP and SCS ceased.  Darlington decided to continue with 
its approach on a voluntary basis, however the partnership lost any legal status and 
became a coalition with moral rather than legal oversight of activities within the 
Borough. 
 

13. In the following years, the reductions to public sector funding led to the reduction of 
support for the DP leading to a review which removed all the themed groups and 
retained the DP board only.   
 

Page 9



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

14. Since the review, the DP has changed focus where originally as an LSP it set 
overall vision and strategy it has focussed more on delivering solutions to 
challenges identified by partners such as :- 
 
(a) Foundation for Jobs  

 
(b) Good Friends 

 
(c) Darlington Cares 

 
(d) A campaign for awareness of mental health in the Workplace 

 
(e) A campaign to raise the awareness of Domestic Violence with employers 

 
(f) Fairer Richer Darlington Programme aimed at tackling the short, medium, and 

long-term impacts and causes of poverty.   
 

(g) The Bread and Butter Thing. 
 

15. It is fair to say that a lot of the work has been done outside the Board and delivered 
by the Director of the Partnership and partners.  The Director has been the driving 
force in delivering the many projects. 
 

16. The DP Board met bi-monthly for approximately 2 hours between 12 noon and 2pm 
despite the good work achieved, discussions with the vast majority of partners 
revealed a general feeling that the Board itself is not where work gets done and 
although a useful networking opportunity it is generally felt that a new approach 
was required to partnering to deliver success for Darlington. 
 

17. To this end, a meeting of the public sector funders of the partnership was arranged 
to discuss and develop a new proposal which is set out in the following part of this 
report. 
 

Proposal 
 
18. As the legal requirement and status of an LSP has ceased, the public sector 

partners were clear that Darlington Borough Council has the democratic mandate 
to set policy for the Borough in consultation with partners and the public.  It was 
therefore suggested that the pretty much redundant SCS is stood down and that 
the Council fills that void by providing leadership to the Borough via its Council Plan 
– Delivering Success for Darlington (DSFD).  Partner agencies would seek where 
possible to take a lead from the plan and align their plans where appropriate. 
 

19. A Darlington Public Sector Executive Group (PSEG) to be established including 
senior officers from key public sector bodies with the purpose of co-ordinating 
efforts to Deliver Success for Darlington.  The key aims would be to :- 
 
(a) Gain a common understanding of the issues facing Darlington 

 
(b) Collective ‘horizon scanning’  

 
(c) Maximise the benefits of the public sector resources 

 

Page 10



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

(d) Review and plan initiatives to deliver success 
 

(e) To advise their own Governance on issues raised at the partnership and seek 
approval from them where appropriate  
 

(f) To work and support the private and voluntary sector to deliver programmes 
and projects to deliver success for Darlington. 
 

(g) To act as the Programme Board for key initiatives. 
 

20. The group would meet regularly and would include the following or their 
representatives:- 
 
(a) Chief Executive, DBC  
(b) Chief Operating Officer CCG 
(c) Chief Constable 
(d) Chief Fire Officer  
(e) Director of Teesside University 
(f) Chief Executive of Durham & Darlington Health Trust 
(g) Principal of Darlington College 
(h) Chief Executive of the Police Victim and Crime Commissioners office. 

 
21. Other relevant officers may well attend as necessary. 

 
22. The Group initially would support/oversee the following delivery 

projects/organisations with more to follow :- 
 
(a) Darlington Cares 
(b) Bread and Butter Thing 
(c) Northgate Initiative 
(d) Community Wealth Building 

 
23. The group will be supported by the Director of the Darlington Partnership who will 

act as programme/project lead for many of the initiatives together with support from 
the Council’s Policy & Performance Manager in respect of evidence and policy 
matters.  Partners would continue to financially support PSEG as they do the 
Darlington Partnership and lend their support as needed. 
 

24. As outlined in the aims above the group will work with the private sector engaging 
through existing, issues focused forums such as the Towns Fund Board and 
Darlington Cares.  
 

25. The Board would also look to work with the voluntary sector to ensure they are 
aware of emerging challenges and opportunities. 

 
Legal and Constitutional Implications 
 
26. The SCS was previously adopted by the Council as part of the documents that 

comprise the Council’s policy framework.  The legal requirement for Council’s to 
adopt a SCS was repealed by the Deregulation Act 2015 [ S.100(2)(c) ] and 
whether council’s continue to have an SCS is a matter of local discretion.  
Agreement to remove a policy framework strategy will require this to be considered 
by Cabinet and then Council, who will need to approve any change of approach.  

Page 11



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
27. Should the SCS cease to be used, reference to it as a document forming part of the 

policy framework will need to be removed from the constitution and consequential 
amendments made as necessary to reflect this change.  
 

Page 12



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
25 JUNE 2021 
 

 

 
DRAFT MINUTE EXTRACT FROM 

CABINET 
1 JUNE 2021 

 

 
 

C8 PARTNERSHIP WORKING IN DARLINGTON 
 

 The Leader introduced the report of the Chief Executive (previously circulated) 
advising Members of changes which had been made in relation to partnership 
working in Darlington, which involved replacing the current Partnership Board by a 
Public Sector Executive Group (PSEG).  It was also reported that, subject to 
approval by Council, the Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) would cease to 
be used as a strategic lead for the Borough, with the lead in future being provided 
to partners by the Council Plan. 
 
It was reported that the membership of the PSEG would include senior officers 
from key public sector bodies and its key aims would be to gain a common 
understanding of the issues facing Darlington; collective horizon scanning, 
maximising the benefits of public sector resources; reviewing and planning 
initiatives to deliver success; advise on its on governance issues and seek 
approval where appropriate; work and support the private and voluntary sector to 
deliver programmes and projects and to act as the key Programme Board for key 
initiatives. 
 
Reference was made to the background to the establishment of the Darlington 
Partnership, which had become the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP), when 
Government legislation required local authorities to establish a LSP; its various 
statutory roles, funding and support, mainly by the public sector; its duty to agree 
and deliver a SCS; and its success in delivering a number of successful projects 
over many years. 
 
It was reported that a further report on how the new partnerships arrangements 
were working would be submitted to Cabinet in October 2021. 
 
RESOLVED – (a) That the new approach to partnership working in Darlington, as 
detailed in the submitted report, be noted. 
 
(b)  That the great contribution to Darlington made by current and past Members of 
the Darlington Partnership, be recognised. 
 
(c)  That the change of emphasis with the Council Plan standing as the Council’s 
lead strategy, be approved, and the Council cease to have a separate Sustainable 
Community strategy. 
 

Page 13



 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

(d)  That, subject to approval by Council, authority be delegated to the Assistant 
Director, Law and Governance to make consequential amendments to the 
constitution. 
 
(e)  That a report be submitted to Council for consideration and approval. 
 
REASONS – (a) To refresh partnering in Darlington continues to thrive and 
acknowledge the general work done. 
 
(b)  For the matter to be considered by Council in accordance with the procedure for 
making changes to documents that are part of the policy framework. 
 
(c)  To enable appropriate amendments to the constitution to be made. 
 

 

Page 14


	Agenda
	3 Partnership Working in Darlington
	Call-In Notice
	Cabinet Report
	Minute extract


